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The Ceramics Factory in Znojmo is the Oldest Factory with Machine Production of its Kind in Europe
Brief History of the Znojmo Plant
When the construction of a ceramics factory started in Znojmo in 1878, hardly anybody could predict that the plant would flourish even 135 years later and its products, under the Jika brand, would be known worldwide. The factory, originally named after Rudolf Ditmar, is the oldest factory with machine production of this kind in the whole of Europe. Currently, the factory manufactures sanitary ceramics as well as bathroom furniture. 

The Times of Rudolf Ditmar, or “It All Started with Lamps”
The Znojmo plant was founded in 1878 in Znojmo by Dr. Rudolf Ditmar, a former captain in the imperial and royal Austrian-Hungarian army. Yet there was little to be done and the story could have been quite different. The “fatal moment” came in Paris and “the one on the other side” was an oil lamp. Oil lamps were difficult to regulate and this limited their functionality. Ditmar and his brother first started to trade lamps; in 1841, they already had their first lamp factory in Vienna. In 1850, they successfully developed an improved type of the lamp – the so-called Viennese Lampe fitted with an adjustable oil supply mechanism. The innovation helped the company to make its way to foreign markets and expand. In the 1860s, the Ditmar oil lamps dominated the world market. After fall of the absolutist regime, Ditmar joined politics and became a Member of Parliament; he was honoured with numerous orders and merits and became one of the decision-makers making important decisions concerning the economic and industrial development of the Austrian Empire. At the same time, his businesses were expanding. In 1878 he established the Znojmo plant, and besides his factory in Vienna he also owned plants in Warsaw and Milan. The foundations of his success were laid not only by his courage to trade products of other  companies, but also by the fact that he  was able to cover all the production processes for his manufacture having thus control over quality and delivery dates as well. In his time, the Znojmo factory specialized on production of artistic ceramic bodies for lamps as well as majolica and earthenware products – washing sets in particular. Soon after, the production was expanded to include sanitary products, richly decorated tiles or ceramic parts for bamboo furniture. Machine production made it possible to offer more competitive prices than other competitors and established the company on the market. Top product quality, sophisticated and unique design made the Znojmo plant an important manufacturer pioneering sanitary ceramics production well before the end of the 19th century. Small manufactories were unable to face this competition and gradually withdrew from the market.  
Lichtenstern Brothers’ Focus on Medical Ceramics

After Ditmar’s death in 1895, his heirs founded Kunstthonwarenfabrik Rudolf Ditmar Erben corporation. Although the company remained prosperous, it changed its owners in 1909. The company was acquired by the Lichtenstern brothers, owners of a ceramics factory in Willhelmsburg, for 1.5 million Austrian crowns. The new owners were well aware of the quality of the brand name and retained the company’s name and logo. However, the production focus changed. The production of artistic artefacts and tiles receded to give way to machine production of utility and medical ceramics, flush-bowls and wash basins. 
Fire Triggered Modernization

With the fall of the Austrian-Hungarian Empire the joint stock company was divided and the Znojmo company became the foundation of a newly established Ditmar-Urbach company. In 1920, the company was stricken by fire. However, the devastating fire was not the end of the company, it was an opportunity to modernize the factory and implement new technologies. The company was the first in Europe to start production of washbasins, bathtubs, sinks and other products made of fire-clay in 1925. These innovations earned the Znojmo factory products a lot of acknowledgement all over the world. This was also the time when the known logo with a swan appeared for the first time – the ceramics factory registered the logo in 1924. Ditruvit, a new extremely hard, non-absorbent porcelain material with lasting glaze, brought in further progress. This material gradually took over the whole production range of the sanitary products. 
World War II and German Administration

The World War II did not avoid the Znojmo plant either. Even before the WWII broke out, the company was disappropriated for the Jewish origin of the Lichtenstern brothers and was subject to German administration; on 1st January 1939 the company became part of the Ostmark-Keramik A.G. corporation based in Vienna. The company’s development and foreign trade were suspended and part of the company was used for military production. But it was the end of the war that was fatal for the company. Znojmo was not spared the bombardier roar in April 1945 and the company was seriously damaged and most buildings and equipment were destroyed. 
One of the Most Up-to-Date Enterprises of the Region
Another important moment in the history of the Znojmo ceramic plant came at the end of 1945, when the company was nationalized. In 1950, the company was renamed to “Znojemská keramika, národní podnik”. The new management strived to renew operations as soon as possible and to re-establish the business links with a factory in Teplice. The company was renamed once again in 1958 to “Keramické závody, národní podnik, Znojmo”. Technology-wise, the company became one of the most up-to-date enterprises of the region maintaining this position for the next fifty years and formed a holding of the Znojmo, Teplice, Kravsko and Bechyně factories. The company also ran its own apprentice centre. In this new era, the company focused on the production of utility ceramics and its products were exported worldwide. In 1970, the ceramic company experienced a boom triggered by housing construction. It launched the hit product of the upcoming years – a WC combination in 1977. 
The importance and craftsmanship of the ceramics factory were documented by some unique orders. The company became one of the manufacturers of replicas of sanitary equipment for the National Theatre in Prague during the theatre renovation in 1983. 
Under the Wings of Laufen CZ

Another major change for the company came in the 1990s. All the holding companies became independent entities in 1990 and “Keramické závody a.s. Znojmo” were established two years later. In 1995, the company was acquired by Keramik Holding AG Laufen that had already been an owner of Jihočeská keramika v Bechyni (ceramics factory Bechyně) acquired in 1991. The sanitary ceramics Jika brand came to existence as early as 1991 being composed of the words “JIhočeská keramiKA”. In 1999, the Keramik Holding Laufen was taken over by the Spanish company Roca making JIKA, through the acquisitions by the mother company, part of the largest global manufacturer of sanitary ceramics. LAUFEN CZ s.r.o. has been protecting the interests of the Roca company and representing the Roca, Laufen and Jika brands in the Czech Republic since 1999. 
Ceramics, Faucets and Furniture 
The Znojmo plant currently manufactures the whole range of bathroom equipment. It is no longer only sanitary ceramics that is produced under the Jika brand; the company has implemented an independent production line for the production of faucets and bathroom furniture in 2012 as well. 

The company strategy is the ultimate focus on the top quality of all products and to continuously look for new design possibilities. Support given to talented design students is an example of one of the possibilities of how to shape new ways. For example, Laufen CZ has worked together with the Ceramic Design Studio at University of West Bohemia in Pilsen, and this year the company renewed its cooperation with the Academy of Arts, Architecture and Design in Prague.
For more information please visit www.jika.cz.
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